
The Traverse Area District Library will provide necessary reasonable auxiliary aids and services to individuals with disabilities at 
the meeting upon at least 3 days’ notice to the Library. Individuals with disabilities requiring auxiliary aids or services should 
contact the Library Administrative Office by emailing publiccomment@tadl.org or calling 231-932-8500. 

 

 
_____________________________________________________________________________________ 

 
1. Call to Order       
2. Pledge of Allegiance 
3. Approval of Agenda 
4. Public Comment*  

   
5. Consent Agenda 

a. Approval of Minutes – Regular Meeting of May 18, 2023  
b. Department Reports 
c. Finance and Facilities Committee Report – June 13, 2023 

1. 2022 Audit  
d. Policy and Personnel Committee Report – June 6, 2023 

1. Policy Revision: 3.3 Library of Things Policy 
2. New Policy: 4.10 Security Camera Policy 
3. Updated Employee Handbook 

e. Financial Report – Narrative | Budget Summary 
f. Member Library Communications – FLPL | IPL | PCL 
g. Friends of TADL Report – Jud Barclay, President 
h. Correspondence 

6. Items Removed from the Consent Calendar 
 

7. Director Report 
 

8. Old Business 
a. Millage Update 
b. Bathroom Update and RFP Request 

 
9. New Business 

a. MACC Grant Application 
 

10. Public Comment* 
11. Trustee Comment 
12. Closed Session (if needed) 
13. Adjournment 

 

 

* If you wish to speak during the Public Comment section of the meeting, please (1) wait until you are 

recognized; (2) approach the podium and use the microphone; (3) state your name and the county and 
township or city in which you reside; and (4) limit your comments to 3 minutes. Please sign in at the podium.   

  

AGENDA 

Board of Trustees Regular Meeting 
Thursday, June 15, 2023 at 3:00pm 

Fife Lake Public Library 
77 Lakecrest Ln., Fife Lake, MI 49633 

 

mailto:publiccomment@tadl.org


 

 
Page 1 of 4 

 

    
_____________________________________________________________________________________ 

1. Call to Order 
With a quorum of trustees in attendance, the meeting was called to order by Vice President Pakieser 
at 3:00pm. Present were: Pakieser (Vice President); Sullivan (Treasurer); Vickery, Wescott, Jones, 
and Deyo (Trustees). Odgers (President, arrived at 3:02). Also present were: Howard (Director); 
Morey, Baldwin, and Carpenter (Staff). 
 

2. Pledge of Allegiance 
All members in attendance recited the Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag of the United States of 
America.  

 
3. Re-appointment of Trustee Vickery and Oath of Office 

Secretary Deyo administered the Oath of Office to Trustee Vickery for his re-appointment by the 
City Commission of the City of Traverse City. Vickery accepted and affirmed his Oath of Office. 
 
Vice President Pakieser turned the meeting over to President Odgers upon her arrival. 

 
4. Approval of the Agenda 

Howard requested an amendment to the agenda, adding New Business item c, Bibliotheca Self-
check Expenditure approval, and inserting Robert’s Rule’s Discussion as item 11, with the remaining 
items following in succession. It was MOVED by Sullivan, SUPPORTED by Wescott, to approve the 
agenda as amended. Motion CARRIED.   

 
5. Public Comment 

President Odgers opened the floor for public comment. There was none. 
 
6. Presentation: TADL Millage ~ Shirley Bruursema, Millage Queen 

Bruursema briefly conversed with the board regarding the direction they planned for TADL’s 
upcoming millage. Overall Bruursema believes that TADL is highly regarded in its community and the 
best thing TADL can do heading into the millage is to keep providing innovative and excellent 
services. Based on her 20+ years of experience in passing 145 library millages, she did not 
recommend a February ballot request which the board was primarily considering and reassured the 
board that if the millage did not pass in the August 2024 election there would still be time for a 
November election request. She discussed the importance of a Yes Committee for a winning millage, 
and who can and should participate in that committee. Board members can be on the Yes 
Committee. The Yes Committee is the library’s advocate who can ask for a Yes vote, whereas library 
staff can only provide factual information. Library staff can however, participate in the millage 
campaign as long as it is not on library time. Following the discussion Bruursema suggested the 
board finalize the ballot date, get a Yes committee started soon, and then determine the amount of 
the request. 

 
7. Consent Agenda 

a. Approval of Minutes - Regular Meeting of April 20, 2023 

Board of Trustees Regular Meeting 
MINUTES 

Thursday, May 18, 2023 at 3:00pm 
McGuire Community Room 

610 Woodmere Ave., Traverse City, MI 49686 

Thursday, January 21, 2021 at 4:00pm 
Virtual Meeting via Zoom 

 



 

 
Page 2 of 4 

 

b. Department Reports 
c. Finance and Facilities Committee Report – May 2, 2023 
d. Policy and Personnel Committee Report – No May Meeting 
e. Financial Report – Narrative | Expenses | Revenues 
f. Member Library Communications – FLPL | IPL | PCL 
g. Friends of TADL Report – Donna Hornberger, President 
h. Correspondence 
 
Jones made a request to remove items b and f from the consent agenda for further discussion. 
 
It was MOVED by Jones, SUPPORTED by Vickery, to accept and affirm receipt of the consent 
calendar information, with the removal of items b and f for discussion. Motion CARRIED. 

 
8. Items Removed from the Consent Calendar 

Jones asked Boulter to expand on facility items. Boulter noted that he was researching an e-bike 
book bike option and noted that the recent risk assessment inspection completed by the insurance 
company option is part of the service. TADL’s facilities received good marks and some soft 
recommendations were made to reduce liabilities, such as reflector tape, ensuring the stairwells 
aren’t obstructed, and adding CO2 sensors. East Bay Branch also needs to increase the number of 
electrical outlets to meet the increase in tech needs. 
 
Vicki Shurly, Director of Peninsula Community Library (PCL), reported that they have spent 8 months 
with a faulty lighting system in which the lights wouldn’t turn off, causing high electricity bills. The 
problem had been identified and will be fixed soon.  PCL is again collaborating with University of 
Michigan’s Michigan Medical lecture series presented by world renowned physicians. PCL has been 
busy with non-traditional use of the library. Shurly thanked TADL for the services provided that 
make their small community library a world class library. 
 
Kendall Spratt, Director of Fife Lake Public Library (FLPL), reported that the FLPL Board of Trustees 
has approved moving forward with a 2nd story and basement addition to the library. The top floor 
would hold a community room and the basement would provide much needed storage. Fundraising 
has begun. 

 
9. Director Report 

Howard confirmed her written report and provided the following comments: 

• Behavioral incident suspensions at TADL have fallen 94% since last year. Howard will be 
writing an opinion editorial for the Record Eagle to addresses the community effort and 
positive changes that have happened since the board’s call to action.  

• A Rotary Changemaker Event was held at TADL, a series by the Rotary intended to connect 
people in the community. Staff members showcased TADL’s bookmobile and 3D printer.  

• TADL is again, working with NorthEd, to provide job preparation opportunities to 
developmentally delayed students who want to work in the summer. This continues to be a 
successful partnership.  

• Howard and Denby extended outreach services to The Women’s Resource Center, where 
women in the shelter can get a library card to check out three items at a time and use 
TADL’s digital resources for three months.  

• Howard thanked Baldwin, TADL’s new Finance and Human Resources Manager, for a 
fantastic job on her first TADL audit. Results from the auditors will be brought the Finance 
and Facilities Committee in June.  



 

 
Page 3 of 4 

 

Deyo inquired about funding alternatives for Hoopla. Howard noted that in order to help control 
costs for the pay-per-item-use format through Hoopla, the checkout limit was reduced by one item 
per month and many items will be, instead, ordered through OverDrive, a resource where TADL can 
control the cost better.  

 
10. New Business  

a. Smart Building Software Approval 
Howard noted that TADL has been running on the same building control system for 25 years and 
needs to be updated. Boulter, briefly discussed the three quotes received and after analysis 
recommended Smart Building Niagra N4 JACE. It was MOVED by Jones, SUPPORTED by Pakieser 
and Sullivan, to purchase the Smart Building Niagra N4 JACE building management at a cost not 
to exceed $30,000 as presented.  
A roll call vote was taken with the following results: 
 Wescott – aye  Jones – aye  Vickery – aye 
 Deyo – aye    Pakieser – aye  Odgers – aye          Sullivan – aye 
Motion CARRIED with 7aye.  
 

b. October Board Meeting – Date Change Discussion 
Howard noted that she will be attending the Michigan Library Association Conference, as part of 
the MLA Board of Directors. Since it conflicts with the date of the October TADL board meeting 
she asked the board if they would like to hold the meeting in her absence or move the date. 
Jones, and other trustees, agreed that they would continue the meeting on its regular day with 
Morey filling in for Howard.  
 

c. Bibliotheca Self-check Expenditure 
Howard introduced a 5-year contract with Bibliotheca for self-check terminals that also results 
in an annual payment that exceeds her $25,000 spending limit without board approval. Morey, 
Assistant Director for Technology, noted that Bibliotheca has offered TADL an incentivized 
leasing program as the company does not want to continue to support old equipment and that 
the directors of Interlochen Public Library (IPL) and Fife Lake Public Library (FLPL) have each 
asked for a terminal at their respective libraries. Morey also explained the benefits for future 
budgeting and advantage of having TADL Main, IPL, and FLPL all on the same model and system. 
It was MOVED by Jones, SUPPORTED by Wescott, to approve the expenditure of not more than 
$135,000 for the 5-year contract and annual payments with Bibliotheca for self-check 
replacement terminals at the Main Library and two new self-check terminals for installation at 
Interlochen Public Library and Fife Lake Public Library. A roll call vote was taken with the 
following results: 
 Wescott – aye  Jones – aye  Vickery – aye 
 Deyo – aye    Pakieser – aye  Odgers – aye          Sullivan – aye 
Motion CARRIED with 7aye.  

 
11. Robert’s Rules Discussion 

President Odgers referenced a ‘call to vote’ at the last board meeting in which the debate did not 
immediately end and then go to a vote as it should have according to Robert’s Rules. She had felt 
that some trustees still needed to comment and apologized for allowing the discussion to continue 
before votes were cast. Howard provided a simple cheat sheet of Robert’s Rules for trustees for 
reference or to keep with them during meetings in an effort to keep the board in line with Robert’s 
Rules.     

 
12. Public Comment 



 

 
Page 4 of 4 

 

President Odgers opened the floor for public comment. The following people addressed the board: 
Betsy Myers, TADL Reference Librarian, commented that since she has much experience riding the 
book bike and the e-assist would be appreciated by her and likely by other staff who ride the book 
bike for outreach events since the bike is very heavy loaded with books.   
 

13. Trustee Comment 
Congratulations to Howard for her appointment to the Michigan Library Association Board of 
Directors. 
 
Pakieser appreciated Bruursema’s millage presentation and would like to send a thank you from the 
board. 

 
14. Closed Session (if needed) 

A closed session was not needed. 
 
15. Adjournment 

With a motion to adjourn by Wescott, supported by Vickery, President Odgers adjourned the 
meeting at 4:3pm.  
 

 
Respectfully submitted,   Approved by board vote on June 15, 2023 

 
 
 

V. Carpenter, Recording Secretary  P. Deyo, Board Secretary 
 
 
 



Departmental Reports
for the month of May

(June 15, 2023 Board Meeting)

Adult Services
● In May, the library celebrated Asian American and Pacific Islander Heritage month by

again being a partner with the group who planned and presented two local, AAPI themed
film and food events. On May 9th and 15th our community gathered, ate food provided
by local asian restaurants, and learned about the struggles and history of our AAPI
neighbors in MI. The culmination of our events was the attendance of the family from the
movie Bad Axe joining us for the screening and discussion afterwards with 150 TC area
residents at the Milliken Theater at the Dennos Museum. These events are an important
way to increase diversity and acceptance in our community and the library looks forward
to participating again next year. (Purposeful Partnerships)

● Partnership Highlights (Purposeful Partnerships):
○ Melissa McKenna and TADL Marketing Manager, Heather Brady, attended the

Grand Traverse Band of Ottawa and Chippewa Indians Missing & Murdered
Indigenous Peoples Awareness Day Ceremony on May 5th.

○ SCORE, GTAGS and TAHS held their usual monthly programs at the library.
● In May, the following programs were held (in addition to those listed above):

○ In honor of Mental Health Awareness Month, two sessions on mindfulness were
offered by a local coach.(Inclusive Space, Purposeful Partnerships)

○ Once again, the Morel King packed the McGuire Room with 80 people wanting to
learn more about finding those elusive edible treasures.

○ After several requests from patrons, Books to Movies, TADL’s regular film
program returned this month from its pandemic hiatus!

○ We held two author programs this month - one with the authors of The Long
March Home and a second with dystopian sci fi author Jeff Vande Zande.

○ A Titanic historian and enthusiast gave a talk entitled “Titanic: Survivors, Victims,
and Legacies; The Rest of the Story” about what happened to passengers and
crew after they were rescued from the sinking ship.

○ Our two regular book discussion groups - Books & Brewskis (Innovative
Engagement) and Queer Tales (Inclusive Space) both met this month.

○ TADL Stitchers and Tai Chi continue to meet regularly.
● May Adult Services Statistics:

○ Programs - 21
○ Attendance - 497
○ Questions Answered - 1902
○ Notary Signatures - 10
○ Proctored Exams - 1

https://youtu.be/H9dRPSkArVU
https://youtu.be/pDgvvUODZ2g
https://www.tadl.org/event/books-movies-18
https://youtu.be/t_u-_o51Q1Y
https://youtu.be/t_u-_o51Q1Y
https://youtu.be/QzDJga41fi0
https://www.tadl.org/event/books-brewskis-15
https://www.tadl.org/event/queertales-may2023


○ Craft Kits Distributed - 50 (Felt Flowers)
○ Volunteer Hours - 8+

Local History Collection
● Interviews were conducted and two individuals were offered and accepted the Petertyl

Internship positions, which are mostly funded by our partnership with Traverse Area
Historical Society. They will be working in the LHC during the month of July for 40 hours
each.

● Reference staff answered 41 local history questions over the course of the month.

Respectfully Submitted,
Melissa McKenna
Head of Adult Services

Youth Services
Youth Services finished our regular Storytime and afterschool programming on May 19th so we
could concentrate on upcoming school visits to promote the Summer Library Challenge and to
put more energy into planning summer programming, crafts and activities. In total, we held 15
Early Literacy programs for 163 patrons. In addition, we held 19 afterschool and weekend
programs for 382 patrons, including a Comic Con Storytime at the Grand Traverse Resort with
staff members Miss Courtnei (Elsa) and Mr. Andy (Batman).

Youth Services librarians Mr. Andy and Miss Courtnei visited schools in a variety of ways to
promote the Summer Library Challenge, including the traditional all school assembly, divided
school (upper elementary and lower elementary) assemblies, classroom and library visits,
classroom visits to TADL and even made a short video presentation at one of the TCAPS’
locations. They were very hip to the groovy theme and dressed in 70s style to promote our “All
Together Now” theme. In total, we were able to visit in person with 1,292 students and also
share our SLC video with 1,167 more students, as well as get Summer Library Challenge
bookmarks in the hands of over 4,000 students (additional visits and video promotion are being
held in June). This was the first time we visited schools since 2019 and it was great to get back
in the groove of these. Looking forward to more in 2024!

Desk stats were down for the month as weather warmed and we hosted less in-person
programs. In total, we answered 817 questions, with 731 walk-in, 85 phone, and 1 digital. These
are 21% lower than April 2023 (warmer weather and less programming) and 37% lower than
May 2022 (we hosted 1st grade visits late last year).

We’re happy for the short break before summer and excited for all of the new faces and busy
bodies in Youth Services during the Summer Library Challenge!

Respectfully submitted,
Andy Schuck
Youth Services

https://livestream.com/tcapslive/whlive/videos/236395121


Teen Services
TADL has been selected as one of 58 libraries nationwide to take part in the Great Stories Club,
a reading and discussion program for underserved teens. This competitive grant is offered by
the American Library Association (ALA) with support from the National Endowment for the
Humanities (NEH).

As part of the Great Stories Club, I will work with a group of teens and the Traverse City High
School to read and discuss stories that explore questions of race, equity, identity and history.
Book discussions will be led by an experienced librarian in cooperation with the ELA teacher at
the high school.

Linda Smith
Head of Teen Services

Sight & Sound
TADL Meeting Room Stats MAY 2023
Total:128
TADL meetings:17
Personal/Outside Group Meetings: 111
Paid Meetings: 7
Unpaid Meetings: 121
Walk-ins: 17
Advance Reservation: 111
Number of Meetings by Room MAY 2023
McGuire Room: 32
Thirlby Room: 53
Study Room D: 43

Circulation
The Circulation department is very happy to welcome Amber Stine to the department! Amber
started with the library as a page for Adult Services.

May Circulation Numbers
New patron accounts created: 233 (vs 245 last year - last year we had class visits in May, but
they will be in June this year!)
Curbside pickups for May 2023: 10
Notary Public Service requests filled: 8
Circulation Statistics for MeLCat, May 2023:

● TADL items sent to borrowing institutions: 1199 (vs 1215 last year)
● TADL items received from lending institutions: 2107 (vs 1742 last year)

Respectfully Submitted,
Josh Denby



Marketing and Communications
May is the peak of the marketing year calendar, with many events and items to prepare in
advance of summer kickoff. We celebrated Preservation Week (Targeted Outreach), installed
the Veterans Art Show (along with the Soldiers’ Table) (Innovative Engagement/Targeted
Outreach), and I was honored to attend an awareness day event in Peshawbestown (Targeted
Outreach). Look for a future item on a Three Sisters/GTA Children’s Garden planting related to
this visit.

I created a newsletter for the Talking Book
Library and coordinated some volunteer work
bees for the newsletter and a few other
projects. We had a joint promotion with
Dennos for AAPI Month (Purposeful
Partnerships), welcomed Rotary (Purposeful
Partnerships) for an early morning Coffee with
Changemakers event (a great chance for this
group to see the bookmobile), and I worked
with Michele on some grant applications for
restroom upgrades (Inclusive Space). We
ended the month with another funding
presentation opportunity and made some great
new connections.

The photo shows our Rotary event setup, with the bookmobile, our fun new tent, and
coordinating (windproof) tablecover.

I also created some new literature with Josh for the Women’s Resource Center to support
Michele’s collaborative discussion with the WRC (all SP categories). The project included
inexpensive disposable/recyclable brochure holders for ease of use. I ended the month with an
expedited/early newsletter to promote all the events scheduled for the first weekend of June.
Shirts and bookmarks started going out to school visits (Targeted Outreach/Purposeful
Partnerships) and we’re looking ahead to a very busy June!

Press - We continue to get good consistent
coverage in the press for our events and news.
May stats are at right, we were mentioned in a
publication or on the news (online and other)
22 of the 31 days.

Website - 12,386 users; 47,240 page views
Most popular pages include the event
calendar, locations and hours, upcoming
events.

Heather Brady
Marketing & Communications Manager



Human Resources
The following is a summary of employment changes for the month of May ‘23.

New Employees: Employee Position Transfers:

Mackenzie Vance
PT Page, Sight & Sound

Amber Stine
FT Library Assistant, Circulation
Previously: PT Page, Adult Services

Facilities
● Researched Building Control Systems, collated quotes
● Researched ADA compliance for bathroom project
● Implemented insurance adjuster recommendations
● Coordinated multiple landscape contractors
● Repaired staff entry door, adjusted backswing
● Assembled Bookmobile tool kit
● Installed Bookmobile parking sign
● Upgraded lighting for Reference display case
● Recycled old aluminum blinds at Padnos
● Organized and prepared for Library Surplus Yard Sale

Respectfully submitted,
Bret R Boulter, Facilities Manager

TADL Talking Book Library
I attended the Midland Conference in Lansing. It was very informative and I was able to meet
with a few people from the National Library Service in Washington D.C.

The Tuesday @ Two book group read, “Olive, Again” by Elizaeth Strout.

I now take the bookmobile to 8 outreaches a month. Pace North is the newest one.

Notary requests filled-9



I offered a chair yoga program led by Janet Weaver. 8 people attended and expressed interest
in doing it again.

I helped Youth services at the Cherry Capital Comic Con. It was fun and I got to see Batman do
the Tooty Ta dance!

Anita Chouinard
Talking Book Library Manager

Kingsley Branch Library
A fun fact about Kingsley is that the average age of our residents is 35.2 years. We have a lot of
children in our service area! Our program numbers reflect our demographics. In an average
month, 70 percent of our programs are geared toward pre-readers, youth, and families, with an
average of 35 people per youth and family program. We partner often with schools and
education groups to meet the needs of all children we serve. Below is a quick summary of KBL
programs for January-May 2023 as a chart and graph:

Programming Jan-May 2023

Age Group Number of Programs Program Attendance

Family & Outreach 14 987

Youth 56 1515

Teen 17 224

Adult 6 72

Respectfully submitted,
Amy Barritt
Branch Manager











































































































 

 

 

 

 

TADL Board of Trustees 

Policy and Personnel Committee 

 

June 5, 2023 

10:00 am Thirlby Room 

 
610 Woodmere Ave. / Traverse City, MI / 49686 

____________________________________________________________________________ 

Attendance: M. Vickery, J. Wescott, and M.  Pakieser, Trustees. M. Myers, V. Carpenter, D. 

Baldwin, M. Howard, staff.  

 

Agenda Approval: The agenda was approved as amended.  

 

Minutes Approval: The minutes of the April 4, 2023 meeting were approved. 

 

Public Comment: There was none. 

 

Policy Committee: 

• Policy 3.3 Library of Things – Revisions 

Howard explained that there needed to be a few changes to this policy because it 

contradicted with other policies. The changes included removing the requirement to be 

over 18 to borrow a laptop and hotspot. Additionally, it added an indemnification clause 

to the policy itself instead of having a separate agreement for patrons to sign. There was 

much discussion. It was motioned by Pakieser and seconded by Wescott to forward this 

for Board approval at the June Board meeting. All were in favor.  

 

• New Policy 4.10 Security Camera Policy 

Howard explained that the library did not have a policy and under advice of legal 

counsel, we should adopt the policy. There was much discussion. It was motioned by 

Wescott and seconded by Pakieser to forward this for Board approval at the June Board 

meeting. All were in favor. 

 

Personnel Committee: 

• Employee Handbook Approval 

Howard explained that Carpenter, Baldwin and herself revised that handbook. It was then 

sent to legal counselors, Adams and Zeits. The final revision of the handbook must be 

approved by the Board. It was motioned by Pakieser and seconded by Wescott to forward 

this for Board approval at the June Board meeting. All were in favor. 

 

Next Meeting Date / Time: August 1, 2023 at 10:00 am.  

Next Meeting Topic Suggestions:   

 

Public Comment: None 

Adjournment: The meeting adjourned at 11:16 am. 







TRAVERSE AREA DISTRICT LIBRARY POLICY MANUAL 4.0 Facilities 

Page 1 of 2 
 

4.10 Surveillance Policy 

 

PURPOSE 
Security cameras are used to enhance the safety and security of Traverse Area District Library 
(TADL) users and staff by discouraging violations of the TADL Behavior Policy, to assist library 
staff in preventing the occurrence of any violations, and when necessary, to provide law 
enforcement assistance in prosecuting criminal activity.  

 

SECURITY CAMERA GUIDELINES 
1. The security cameras only capture video images. Conversations or other audible 

communication shall not be monitored or recorded by the security cameras. 
2. Cameras may be installed in outdoor and indoor places where individuals lack a 

reasonable expectation of privacy. Examples include public common areas of the library 
such as parking lots, entrances, seating areas, service desks, and areas prone to theft or 
misconduct, or areas where money is stored or handled. 

3. Cameras will not be installed in areas of the Library where individuals have a reasonable 
expectation of privacy such as restrooms or private offices. 

4. Signs will be posted at all entrances informing the public and staff that security cameras 
are in use.  

5. The Library has no obligation to monitor the cameras in real time. As the cameras are 
not constantly monitored, Library staff and the public should continue to take 
appropriate precautions for their safety and for the safety of their personal property. 
The Library is not responsible for the loss of property or personal injury.  

6. Recorded data is confidential and secured in a controlled area. Video recordings will 
typically be stored according to the library’s Record Retention Schedule established by 
the State of Michigan for Public Libraries. As new images are recorded, the oldest 
images will be automatically deleted.  

7. Requests for images arising from an approved FOIA action, subpoena, or court order, 
will be preserved until those requests or orders are resolved.  

8. Regarding the placement and use of the digital recording cameras, staff and patron 
safety is the first priority; protection of library property is of secondary importance. 

9. Cameras are not installed and will not be used for the purpose of routine staff 
performance evaluations; they may be used in the case of staff malfeasance, 
misconduct, or in the case of policy violations.  

10. Only the Director and Assistant Director of Technology have the authority to approve 
access to security camera logs and recorded footage.  

 

USE/DISCLOSURE OF VIDEO RECORDS  
1. The Director or their designee may access archived video footage for the purposes of 

investigation of injury, criminal activity, or violation of library policies.  
2. Library staff have access to real-time images, viewable on desktop monitors placed in 

secure areas to ensure private access. The frequency of viewing and the amount of 
video viewed will be limited to the minimum needed to assure safety, give assurance 



TRAVERSE AREA DISTRICT LIBRARY POLICY MANUAL 4.0 Facilities 

Page 2 of 2 
 

that the system is working, or to ascertain if footage is available relative to a specific 
incident.  

3. Video records and still photographs may be used by the Director or their designee to 
identify those responsible for library policy violations, criminal activity on library 
property or actions considered disruptive to normal library operations as delineated in 
the Library Code of Conduct.  

4. In situations involving banned patrons, stored still images may be shared with staff 
system- wide. Shared images may remain posted in restricted staff areas for the 
duration of the banning period. 
 

 UNAUTHORIZED ACCESS AND/OR DISCLOSURE 
1. Recorded video surveillance images made solely for security purposes that do not 

include images of any activity or any other document or record that identifies a person 
as having requested or lawfully obtained specific services, materials, or information 
resources from a library are not considered a “Library Record” and may be disclosed. 
The Director or their designee will determine whether the images can be disclosed 
without a court order or written consent. Recorded Video Surveillance will only be 
disclosed pursuant to the Michigan Freedom of Information Act policies if permitted by 
Michigan law (MCL 15.231 et seq) and Library policy.  

2. Any form of unauthorized viewing or capture, digital or otherwise, is strictly prohibited. 
No staff member may download recorded footage, capture a recorded or live image by 
photograph, or make video copies of security camera recordings or live footage.  

3. A breach of this policy may result in disciplinary action up to and including dismissal. Any 
library employee who becomes aware of any unauthorized disclosure of a video 
recording and/or a potential privacy breach has a responsibility to immediately inform 
the Director of the breach.  

 

DISCLAIMER OF RESPONSIBILITY  
A copy of this policy may be shared with any patron or staff member upon request. The policy is 
also posted on the TADL’s official website.  

 
Questions from the public regarding this policy may be directed to the Library Director.  

 
The Library disclaims any liability for use of the video data in accordance with the terms of this 
policy, given that the library is a public facility and the security cameras shall be limited to those 
areas where patrons and/or staff have no reasonable expectation of privacy.  
______________________________________________________________________________ 
New Policy Adopted June 15, 2023  
 
Motion by: ________________________________ Supported by: __________________________ 

 
Adopted:    Y      N     Date: ________________ 
 
_________________________________________ 
P. Deyo, Board Secretary 









































































































 

Financial Report Analysis for May 2023 

   

Revenue 

We have received all of our budgeted Property Tax revenue for this year as well as the first half of State Aid.  We 

usually receive our Penal Fines revenue in July, which at 75% is a majority of our remaining $203,000 in budgeted 

revenue.  As a practice, we budget conservatively for other revenues such as Services, Fines, Sales, Meeting 

Rooms, and Donations as we do not want to overestimate what we ultimately bring in for the year.  With the 

exception of Meeting Rooms, we are doing well toward our budgets for these revenues.   

Investments returns are becoming more modest.  This month Interest & Unrealized Gains totaled just $2,400. 

Expenditures 

Note that percentage of Budget completed is 41.7% as 

of 5/31/2023.  Line item details of interest: 

• Personnel 

Medical, dental, vision, life, and disability show 

higher percentages of budget used due to paying 

one month ahead.  Our percentage of Budget 

completed for these line items is 50%.  Remaining 

line items are in line with YTD expectations. 

• Supplies 

Departments are gearing up for Summer Library 

Challenge and have been making purchases for 

summer programming, including our ever-popular 

t-shirts.  We renewed our McNaughton/Brodart 

leasing contract at $55,270.  This contract purchase 

was included in the 1/19/2023 board meeting 

resolution to approve annual routine invoices over 

$25,000. 

• Other Services/Charges 

Insurance/Bonds and Member Library Allocations are paid once per year at the beginning of the year and 

tend to skew our Percentage of Budget used for this category until later in the year.  Other individual line 

items are close to or under our target of 41.7% for the month of May. 

• Capital Outlay 

There have been no expenditures so far this year, consistent with our budget. 

Audit of 2022 

Lastly, our annual Audit of 2022 has been finalized and will be presented at the Finance and Facilities Meeting 

in June.  I found that working with our auditors at Dennis, Gartland & Niergarth was a pleasure and it went 

very smoothly. 

 

Respectfully submitted, 

Danielle Baldwin 

Finance and Human Resources Manager 

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

80%

90%

100%

Revenue Personnel Supplies Other Svcs

TADL Budget as of 5/31/2023

 YTD  Budget Remaining



6/7/2023 11:07:13 AM Page 1 of 2

Budget Report
Traverse Area District Library Group Summary

For Fiscal: 2023 Period Ending: 05/31/2023

Fiscal
Ac vity

Variance
Favorable

(Unfavorable)
Period

Ac vityRevenueCategory;SubCategory

Current 
Total Budget

Original 
Total Budget

Percent
Used

Revenue

400 - Property Taxes - Current/Delinquent/Pilt 5,644,535.557,144.165,634,707.00 5,634,707.00 9,828.55 100.17%

500 - Grants - Federal/State/Other 37,068.290.0027,475.00 27,475.00 9,593.29 134.92%

540 - State Aid Grant - Library 53,734.180.00107,468.39 107,468.39 -53,734.21 50.00%

541 - State Aid Grant - TBL 20,536.000.0041,073.00 41,073.00 -20,537.00 50.00%

581 - Penal Fines 0.000.00152,900.00 152,900.00 -152,900.00 0.00%

602 - Fees/Services 29,076.0017,000.0041,650.00 41,650.00 -12,574.00 69.81%

607 - Overdue Fines/Replacement Fees 15,392.373,138.320.00 15,000.00 392.37 102.62%

642 - Sales 14,370.813,108.6319,150.00 19,150.00 -4,779.19 75.04%

653 - Meeting Room Rental/Equip Fees -100.00100.002,000.00 2,000.00 -2,100.00 5.00%

665 - Interest & Gains/Losses 32,083.732,454.020.00 0.00 32,083.73 0.00%

674 - Donations/Contributions 16,849.42378.9026,200.00 26,200.00 -9,350.58 64.31%

676 - Misc Revenue & Reimbursements 905.07417.990.00 0.00 905.07 0.00%

5,864,451.4233,742.026,052,623.39 6,067,623.39 -203,171.97Revenue Total: 96.65%

Expense

Category: 70 - Personnel

700 - Salaries & Wages 1,017,477.86222,126.372,631,428.36 2,633,396.77 1,615,918.91 38.64%

710 - Social Security/Medicare 26,108.906,225.8167,519.02 65,734.09 39,625.19 39.72%

712 - Medical Insurance 199,875.3525,227.69383,992.43 390,266.92 190,391.57 51.22%

713 - Dental Insurance 13,400.062,104.9328,504.59 27,601.59 14,201.53 48.55%

715 - Vision Insurance 1,827.04252.843,773.19 3,859.91 2,032.87 47.33%

716 - Life Insurance 3,771.75610.708,909.10 8,764.70 4,992.95 43.03%

717 - Disability Insurance 6,708.381,092.9215,558.59 15,300.47 8,592.09 43.84%

720 - 401K Retirement Contribution 43,974.649,203.06121,111.05 118,965.45 74,990.81 36.96%

721 - MERS Defined Contribution Retirement 66,483.5713,815.49172,320.06 169,226.49 102,742.92 39.29%

722 - MERS DB Unfunded Liability 50,000.0010,000.00120,000.00 120,000.00 70,000.00 41.67%

723 - Worker's Compensation 0.000.008,000.00 8,000.00 8,000.00 0.00%

1,429,627.55290,659.813,561,116.39 3,561,116.39 2,131,488.84Category: 70 - Personnel Total: 40.15%

Category: 72 - Supplies

728 - General Operating Supplies 82,113.0134,129.61197,065.00 189,065.00 106,951.99 43.43%

736 - Repair & Maintenance Supplies 11,655.421,013.466,750.00 14,750.00 3,094.58 79.02%

741 - Books/Media/Online Resources/LoT 331,305.2880,641.54667,960.00 667,960.00 336,654.72 49.60%

425,073.71115,784.61871,775.00 871,775.00 446,701.29Category: 72 - Supplies Total: 48.76%

Category: 80 - Other Services and Charges

801 - Professional & Contractual Services 147,610.9038,887.76310,025.00 310,025.00 162,414.10 47.61%

804 - Advertising & Outreach 6,459.06743.7525,950.00 25,950.00 19,490.94 24.89%

807 - Insurance & Bonds 25,276.38450.0042,280.00 42,280.00 17,003.62 59.78%

809 - General Equip/Building/Grounds Maintenance 135,287.6313,423.25338,510.00 338,510.00 203,222.37 39.97%

850 - Communications 9,400.701,368.7428,500.00 28,500.00 19,099.30 32.98%

921 - Utilities 37,626.3010,480.33109,700.00 109,700.00 72,073.70 34.30%

955 - Education & Travel 45,263.0235,641.02123,330.00 123,330.00 78,066.98 36.70%

959 - Member Library Allocations 648,437.000.00648,437.00 648,437.00 0.00 100.00%

961 - Misc 0.000.000.00 1,500.00 1,500.00 0.00%

964 - Property Tax Reimbursements 2,360.012,142.508,000.00 6,500.00 4,139.99 36.31%

1,057,721.00103,137.351,634,732.00 1,634,732.00 577,011.00Category: 80 - Other Services and Charges Total: 64.70%

2,912,422.26509,581.776,067,623.39 6,067,623.39 3,155,201.13Expense Total: 48.00%

Report Surplus (Deficit): -475,839.75 2,952,029.16-15,000.00 0.00 2,952,029.16 0.00%



 JUNE 2023 DIRECTOR’S REPORT - VICTORIA SHURLY 

Our snail mail newsletter was sent to 3800 households.  It is published quarterly to coincide with each 
season. Many patrons tell us it stays posted on their refrigerator until the next one arrives. 
 
The Children’s Garden is back in shape thanks to three days of hard work by Old Mission Associates, 
which donated the first day of labor.  On order are climbing boulders and a nature sorting table.  
Volunteer gardeners adopt sections to weed and care for on a regular basis. 
 
Our new birding group has a name – Wing Watchers!  The group meets monthly on the first Monday of 
the month at 6:30. Kay Charter of Saving Birds Through Habitat was our guest speaker June 5.  Casual 
hikes at Pyatt Lake are held the first Thursday of the month at 8:30 am.  All are welcome.   
 
Our May blood drive through Versiti resulted in the collection of 12 pints of whole blood that will 
benefit 36 people!  The next drive is scheduled for August 23. Donors can sign up now online at 
https://donate.michigan.versiti.org/donor/schedules/zip 
 
Patricia Henkel will be on hand June 19 to teach patrons how to use Chat GPT and other apps for 
artificial intelligence from their iPhones.  An RSVP is required.   
 
Our first garden concert of the season is the Friends of PCL’s Summer Solstice event June 21 from 5-7 
pm with the Irish music of Doc and Donna Probes.  The Friends will offer free ice cream that evening.  On 
June 30 at 7 pm, Nicholas Veine from Manistee, entertains with a little country, blues and jazz.  Patrons 
are invited to bring a picnic to both. 
 
On June 27 at 8 pm, families are invited into the library after hours for bedtime stories, s’mores and a 
night craft.  If the weather is clear, they can take a look at the sky through our telescope!   
 
We are once again collaborating with U of M’s Michigan Medicine on a lecture series with world 
renowned physicians.  This year’s programs will include presentations on cardio health, diabetes and 
skin cancer.  U of M has developed a great promotional video featuring a “small library and a world-
renowned institution.”  Check our website soon for details!  A fireside chat will follow each lecture with 
opportunity to ask private questions.   
 
PCL Fun Fact:  The birdhouses on our property were a recent Eagle Scout project by a teen who grew up 

using PCL!  
 

Circulation May 2023: 1954 + 45 manual checkouts, May 2022: 2162 

May Volunteers: 13 people (2 teens), 32 hours of time to PCL.   

Curbside pickups: 0.  Home delivery:  2.   New library cards:  4 

Hold Transit Counts May: 575 to other libraries from PCL, 318 from other libraries to PCL  

Programs May: 22 Programs    Participation May: 458    Reference Questions:  401 

Website Hits: 1514, Twilight Baby Bags: 1, 1000 Books Before Kindergarten: 5 
 
 

PENINSULA COMMUNITY LIBRARY 2893 ISLAND VIEW ROAD, TRAVERSE CITY, MI 49686231-223-7700   
www.peninsulacommunitylibrary.org 



 

Board of Library Trustees Regular Meeting 

Library Director Report 
Meeting Date: June 15, 2023 

  

 

 

 

 

Library Activity 

For a graphical presentation of the statistical information included below, please visit the link: online 

TADL dashboard. 

 

Year to Date Circulation Activity 

 

End of Month Print/Audio/Video Electronic 
Books/Audio/Video 

TOTAL 

May 2022 397,711 122,122 519,833 

May 2023 428,257 138,290 566,547 

 

 

Lending 

Circulation is up by 7.8% from last year.  

 

E-Book, magazine, downloadable audiobook, and database utilization 

E-books continue to be popular. Hoopla continues to run over budget and will be reviewing the bills in 

June and adjust accordingly.  

 

 Visitors – Woodmere, East Bay, and Kingsley Facilities 

The busiest day for May was Wednesday, the 17th, with 1,003 patrons. In May 2023, there were 26,707 

visitors at East Bay, Kingsley and the Main library. In May 2023, TADL added 221 new patrons district-

wide. Many are these are due to school visits.  

 

Public Computing 

In the Technology Center and other computer services throughout the district, there was another 

decrease in visitors in May. This equates to 1,827 as oppose to 2,061 sessions in April 2023. 

 

Additions to the Collection 

In May 2023, 3,111 items were added to the district.  

 

Behavior Issues 

There were 3 incidents in May 2023 resulting in zero suspensions. During May of 2022, there were 6 

incidents resulting in 3 suspensions. Jubilee House remains open but I’m hearing that it is substantially 

less busy.  

 

http://www.tadl.org/stats/
http://www.tadl.org/stats/
http://www.tadl.org/stats/


 

Circulation Changes 

I have been working with staff to adjust some of our circulation parameters to better suit the needs of our 

patrons and their borrowing habits. We will make sure to inform patrons of those changes.  

 

Intellectual Freedom 

There has been no activity with Intellectual property issues at TADL. Other libraries throughout the state 

continue to see challenges.  

 

Michigan Library Association 

I am excited to announce that the Michigan Library Association Meeting will be held in Traverse City, 

October 15-18, 2024. I am on the planning committee and will have more details as it gets closer.  

 

State Librarian Visiting 

Randy Riley, the State Librarian for the Library of Michigan, will be visiting TADL on July 21st. I do not 

have many details yet but we are honored by his visit and look forward to showing off the excellent work 

TADL does for our community.  

 

TADL TikTok 

TADL has a new social media, TikTok! We are using it as a way to reach younger audiences, and it’s 

fun! Follow us @traversedistrictlibrary. Thank you staff members Erin and Courtnei for the creativity to 

get this off the ground! 

 

May Outreach, Partnership & Community Activities 

Purposeful Partnerships 

● Met with the Day Shelter Coalition and the Safe Harbor Community group. The Day Shelter is 

funded for the next 1.5 years. Everyone reported positive remarks about the success this year. 

Safe Harbor did struggle with volunteers and the behaviors during the day but overall felt it was a 

huge success.   

● Participated in the Presidents Breakfast during the Northwest Michigan Arts & Culture Summit at 

Interlochen Center for the Arts 

● Hosted the Regional Community Foundation Funders event at TADL with the help of Heather 

Brady and the Sight and Sound department. 

 

Innovative Engagement 

• Was a Guest Speaker for the Friends of the Library Annual Meeting.  

• Hosted the Rotary Change Makers Coffee with the help of Heather Brady and the Sight and 

Sound department.  

 

Community Activities 

• Attended the speaker event for Harm Reduction.  

• Attended the TC Community Development Coalition meeting 

 

Happy Summer Solstice! 

Michele P. Howard, MILS   



  

 _____________________________________________________________________________ 

WHEREAS the Traverse Area District Library (TADL) wishes to apply for a Capital 
Grant from the Michigan Arts and Culture Council to assist in renovation of the library 
bathrooms; and 

 

WHEREAS the TADL is seeking a grant contribution of $60,000. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the TADL Board supports submittal of an 
application to the Michigan Arts & Culture Council for a $60,000 grant to assist in 
funding renovation of the library bathrooms. 
 

Motion by _________________________ seconded by ________________________, 
the President, Susan Odgers, declared the motion adopted. The following voted: 

Yeas:  

Nays:  

Absent:  

 

CERTIFICATION 

I, Paul Deyo, Board Secretary, hereby certify that the foregoing is a true and original 
copy of the resolution adopted by the TADL at a regular meeting on June 15, 2023 at 
3:00pm, which was held in accordance with the Open Meetings Act of the State of 
Michigan.     

 

       ____________________________________ 

       Paul Deyo, Board Secretary 

  
 

RESOLUTION 
 

Resolution of Support 
Michigan Arts & Culture Council Grant Application  

 

June 15, 2023 
 


	2023-06-15 Regular Board Meeting Agenda for web
	2023-05-18 Regular Board Meeting Minutes - ABM_AC
	Departmental Reports for the Board, June 2023
	2022 Audit Communications Drafts 2023-06-15
	Policy & Personnel Committee 2023-06-06 Minutes_AC
	3.3 Library of Things Policy 2023-06-15 - redlined B
	4.10 Security Camera Policy 2023-06- New for signature_AC
	Employee Handbook with Cover 2023-06-15 for signature_AC
	Financial Report Analysis 2023-06-15
	Finance Budget Summary 2023-06-15
	PCL Director Report 2023-06-15
	Directors Report for the Board 6-15-23_AC
	Resolution - MI Arts and Culture Council Plan Grant App 2023-06-15_AC

